IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED

SID J. WHITE

FEB 87 19951 CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Child Deputy Clerk

RICHARD MARCOLINI,

Petitioner,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

Case No. <u>85,225</u>

DCA Case No. 93-3825

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION

RICHARD L. JORANDBY Public Defender 15th Judicial Circuit of Florida

ANTHONY CALVELLO Assistant Public Defender Florida Bar No. 266345 Criminal Justice Building/6th Floor 421 3rd Street West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 (407) 355-7600

Attorney for Richard Marcolini

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner was the defendant in the Criminal Division of the County Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit, In and For Palm Beach County, Florida and the appellee in the Fourth District Court of Appeal. Respondent was the prosecution and the appellant below.

In the brief, the parties will be referred to as they appear before this Honorable Court.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Appellee, Richard J. Marcolini, was charged with the misdemeanor offense of trespass and larceny with relation to utility or cable television services in violation of Section 812.14(2)(c), Fla. Stat. (1991). Section 812.14(3) establishes a statutory presumption of an intent to violate said statute. Appellee subsequently filed a written motion to declare Section 812.14, Fla. Stat. (1991) unconstitutional. R 17-32. A hearing was held on Appellee's motion on November 23, 1993. The Trial Court rejected Appellee's argument that Section 812.14(2)(c) was unconstitutional on the ground that it was void for vagueness. T 62. At the conclusion of the hearing the Trial Court ruled that the statutory presumption contained in Section 812.14(3), F.S. (1991) was unconstitutional because "this raises an impermissible presumption of guilt that isn't really rationally related to-I mean this is not beyond a reasonable doubt.... So I think that it is, like Defense said, an unconstitutional shifting of the burden. And I declare that Section of the law to be unconstitutional. And I think it could be written in such a way that it could be constitutional." R 59-60. The Trial Court ruled in his written order that Section 812.14(3), F.S. (1991), "creates an unlawful mandatory presumption even if it is rebuttable and is therefore unconstitutional on its face." R 59-61.

Appellee-State filed a Notice of Appeal with the Fourth District Court of Appeal.

The Fourth District in a written opinion rendered on February 1, 1995, *State v. Marcolini*, 20 Fla. Law. Weekly D300 (Fla. 4th DCA Feb. 1, 1995) [See Appendix 1] reversed the order of the trial court declaring Section 812.14(3), *Fla. Stat.* (1991) unconstitutional.

Petitioner-Defendant filed a timely Notice of Discretionary Review to this Honorable Court [See Appendix 2].

2

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Petitioner respectfully submits that this Honorable Court has discretionary jurisdiction over the instant cause on three (3) separate grounds.

First, the Fourth District Court of Appeal expressly declared valid a Florida state statute, Section 812.14(3), Fla. Stat. (1991), entitled: "Trespass and larceny with relation to utility or cable television fixtures." Second, the opinion of the Fourth District expressly and directly conflicts with this Court's decision in MacMillan v. State, 358 So. 2d 547 (Fla. 1978) on the same question of law. See State v. Marcolini, 20 Fla. Law Weekly at D302. Third, the Fourth District expressly interpreted the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution which this Court has discretionary jurisdiction to review. Hence, this Honorable Court should grant discretionary review based on any of the grounds cited herein.

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT HAS JURISDICTION OVER THE INSTANT DECISION OF THE FOURTH DISTRICT ON THREE (3) SEPARATE GROUNDS.

This court has the power to review a district court decision which expressly and directly declares valid a state statute. Article V, Section 3(b)(3), *Florida Constitution* (1980), which states: "[The Supreme Court] may review any decision of a district court of appeal that expressly and directly declares valid a state statute." See also *Kane v. Robbins*, 556 So. 2d 1381 (Fla. 1989).

The Fourth District in the instant cause held that Section 812.14(3), *Fla. Stat.* $(1991)^1$, the statutory presumption contained within the "theft of utilities" statute, Section 812.14(2)(c),² was constitutional. See *State v. Marcolini, supra* [Appendix 1].

[Emphasis Supplied].

¹ (3) The presence on property in the actual possession of a person of any device or alteration which affects the diversion or use of the services of utility so as to avoid the registration of such use by or on a meter installed by the utility or so as to otherwise avoid the reporting of use of such service for payment shall be prima facie evidence of the violation of this section by such person; however, this presumption shall <u>not</u> apply unless:

⁽a) The presence of such a device or alteration can be attributed only to a deliberate act in furtherance of an intent to avoid payment for utility services;

⁽b) The person charged has received the direct benefit of the reduction of the cost of such utility services; and

⁽c) The customer or recipient of the utility services has received the direct benefit of such utility service for at least one full billing cycle.

² Section 812.14(2)(c) provides, in pertinent part, that it is unlawful to: Use or receive the direct benefit from the use of a utility, cable television service, or community antenna line service knowing, or under such circumstances as would induce a reasonable person to believe, that such direct benefits have resulted from any tampering with, altering of, or injury to any connection, wire, conductor meter, pipe, conduit, line, cable, transformer, amplifier or other apparatus or device owned, operated, or controlled by such utility or cable television service or community antenna line service, for the purpose of avoiding payment.

A decision expressly construing a provision of the state or federal constitution is also subject to the discretionary review of this court. See Article V, Section 3(b)(3), *Florida Constitution* (1980); *Fla.R.App.P.* 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii). Here, the decision of the Fourth District expressly construed, explained, or defined the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution. See *State v. Marcolini*, 20 Fla. Law Weekly at D300-301.

Finally, the instant opinion of the Fourth District expressly and directly conflicts with the Court's decision in *MacMillan v. State*, 358 So. 2d 547 (Fla. 1978)(See Appendix 3) on the same question of law. This Court in *MacMillan* held that the predecessor statutory presumption [Section 812.14(3), *Fla. Stat.* (1976)] was *unconstitutional* on it's face.

This Court held that:

Sub judice, we need not consider whether the subject statutorily created presumption meets the reasonable doubt standard since we agree with appellant that it does not satisfy the rational connection standard. Under the challenged statute, the presumed fact of intent to violate and of violation comes into play merely upon proof that the property wherein diversion of some sort has occurred is in the actual possession of the accused or upon proof that the accused has received direct benefit from a utility. We find that it cannot be said with substantial assurance that the presumed fact that defendant is guilty of violation of Section 812.14, Florida Statutes (Supp. 1976), is more likely than not to flow from the proved fact of possession of the premises or receipt of benefits. One in actual possession of property or one receiving direct benefits would not more likely than not be the guilty person. Such an inference is irrational and arbitrary.

MacMillan, 358 So. 2d at 549-550.

In the instant case, the Fourth District, in reversing the order of the trial court, relied on this court's decision in *State v. Rolle*, 560 So. 2d 1154 (Fla. 1990) but "recognized that we are *creating conflict* with *MacMillan*, we are satisfied that we should follow *Rolle*,

particularly in light of the refinement of this area of the law in the interim." *Marcolini*, 20 Fla. L. Weekly at D302.

Petitioner respectfully submits that the statutory presumption created by Section 812.14(3) is unconstitutional under the due process clause. Said presumption is mandatory, not permissive, which unconstitutionally shifts the burden of proof to Petitioner-Defendant and relieves the state of the burden of persuasion on elements of the offense charged in violation of the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment. See *Yates v. Evatt*, 111 S. Ct. 1884 (1991); *In Re Winship*, 397 U.S. 358 (1970).

Therefore, based on the grounds cited by Petitioner, this Honorable Court has discretionary jurisdiction over the instant case. Petitioner requests this Court to grant his petition for discretionary review, declare Section 812.14(3) unconstitutional and affirm the order of the trial court declaring said statute unconstitutional.

CONCLUSION

Petitioner requests this Court to accept jurisdiction to review the merits of this case.