SID J. WHITE MAR 22 1995

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

RICHARD MARCOLINI

Petitioner,

S. CT. CASE NO. 85,225

STATE OF FLORIDA,

v.

Respondent.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

AMENDED RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

DCA CASE NO. 93-3825

MYRA J. FRIED XSSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL Fla. Bar #879487 1655 Palm Beach Lakes Blvd. Suite 300 West Palm Beach, FL 33401 (407) 688-7759 FAX NO. 407-688-7771

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner was the Defendant in the Criminal Division of the County Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit, In and For Palm Beach County, Florida and the Appellee in the Fourth District Court of Appeal. Respondent, the State of Florida, was the Prosecution and the Appellant below.

In Respondent's brief for discretionary jurisdiction, the parties will be referred to as they appear before this Honorable Court.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent generally agrees with Petitioner's Statement of the Case and Facts.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Discretionary jurisdiction should not be exercised in the The Fourth District Court of Appeal did not case at bar. expressly declare §812.14(3) of the Florida Statutes constitutional; the Fourth District Court of Appeal applied Florida Supreme Court law which receded from the MacMillan case which the Fourth District claimed to find conflict; and the Fourth District Court of Appeal did not expressly interpret the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT SHOULD NOT EXERCISE ITS DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION TO REVIEW THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL'S DECISION IN THIS CASE.

Petitioner alleges that this honorable court should exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review the instant case on the basis that the Fourth District Court of Appeal expressly declared a state statute valid; the Fourth District's opinion expressly and directly conflicted with this Court's decision in MacMillan v. State, 358 So. 2d 547 (Fla. 1978); and the Fourth District Court of Appeal expressly interpreted the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the federal Constitution.

Respondent maintains that: (1) the Fourth District Court of Appeal did not expressly and directly declare §812.14(3) of the Florida Statutes constitutional; (2) the Fourth District Court of Appeal applied Florida Supreme Court law which receded from the MacMillan case which the Fourth District claimed to find conflict; and (3) the Fourth District Court of Appeal did not expressly interpret the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution.

The Fourth District Court of Appeal did not expressly and directly declare \$812.14(3) of the Florida Statutes constitutional. In its opinion, the appellate court held that "[b]ecause 'shall be prima facie evidence' are the statutory words used in the present case, we can arrive at no other conclusion but that this is a permissive inference; thus, constitutionality is not determined facially, but rather on the

facts in each case." State v. Marcolini, 20 Fla. L. Weekly 300, 301 (Fla. 4th DCA Feb. 1, 1995). The district court of appeal found that on the facts of the case at bar the statute was constitutional.

While we are not persuaded that the changes made by the legislature would make the provision constitutional under the analysis used by the MacMillan court, post-MacMillan decisions by the United States Supreme Court and the Florida Supreme Court hold that the constitutionality of a statutory provision such as this is not to be determined facially, but rather in light of the facts and jury instructions...

Id.

Instead of evaluating the statute on its face, as it did in MacMillan, the Rolle court evaluated it in light of the specifically the manner in which the jury was instructed, and concluded that there was no constitutional error. (Footnote omitted.) Citing Allen, the Rolle court emphasized that the words in the DUI statute, 'shall be prima facie evidence,' were crucial determination that the provision created a permissive inference, not a mandatory presumption. Rolle, 560 So. 2d at 1157.

Id.

Article V §3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution (1980) states that "[The Supreme Court] may review any decision of a district court of appeal that expressly declares valid a state statute." Respondent would maintain that although the Fourth District Court of Appeal found the statute constitutional as it applied to the facts of this particular case, the court thus implied that the same statute could be found unconstitutional based on the facts

of another case. Even if this Court should agree with Petitioner that the Fourth District Court of Appeal did declare the statute expressly valid, Respondent would urge this Honorable Court not to accept jurisdiction since Petitioner has not given this Honorable Court any reasons why this Court should exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review this case. This Court should not accept jurisdiction on this basis because of the precedents established in State v. Rolle, 560 So. 2d 1154 (Fla. 1990); State v. Ferrari, 398 So. 2d 804 (Fla. 1981); Ulster County Court v. Allen, 442 U.S. 140, 99 S.Ct. 2213, 60 L.Ed.2d 777 (1979); and Francis v. Franklin, 471 U.S. 307, 105 S.Ct. 1965, 1971, 85 L.Ed.2d 344 (1985).

The Respondent acknowledges that the Fourth District Court of Appeal did state in its opinion that:

We cannot distinguish the statutes involved in <u>MacMillan</u> and in <u>Rolle</u>, nor can we reconcile the decisions. Accordingly, although we recognize that we are creating conflict with <u>MacMillan</u>, we are satisfied that we should follow <u>Rolle</u>, particularly in light of the refinement of this area of the law in the interim.

State v. Marcolini, 20 Fla. L. Weekly 300, 302 (Fla. 4th DCA Feb. 1, 1995). Since the Fourth District Court of Appeal has stated that it has created conflict with MacMillan, it behooves the Respondent to acknowledge this. However, Respondent would contend that the Fourth District Court of Appeal has followed the Supreme Court's legal precedent by applying State v. Rolle, 560 So. 2d 1154 (Fla. 1990) and other Florida Supreme Court cases.

In <u>Wainwright v. Taylor</u>, 476 So. 2d 669 (Fla. 1985), this honorable court dismissed a habeas corpus petition because conflicting incorrect case law was eliminated by cases which applied the correct rule of law.

Our concern in cases based on our conflict jurisdiction is the precedential effect of those decisions which are incorrect and in conflict with decisions reflecting the correct rule of law. Mystan Marine, Inc. v. Harrington, 339 So. 2d 200 (Fla. 1976); Ansin v. Thurston, 101 So. 2d 808 (Fla. 1958). We have, in the past, dismissed cases reflecting the correct rule of law, where the conflicting, incorrect cases have been eliminated as to precedential effect. Bailey v. Hough, 441 So. 2d 614 (Fla. 1983)(conflicting case receded from in subsequent decision); Wackenhut Corp. v. Judges of District Court of Appeal, 297 So.2d 300 (Fla. 1974)(conflicting case reversed).

Wainwright v. Taylor, 476 So. 2d at 670. In the instant case, the Fourth District Court of Appeal looked to State v. Rolle, 560 So. 2d 1154 (Fla. 1990), and State v. Ferrari, 398 So. 2d 804 (Fla. 1981) to evaluate the statute in question. The Fourth District Court of Appeal determined that "[w]e are not unmindful of the fact that as a district court of appeal we cannot overrule our supreme court's decision in MacMillan; however, we are convinced that the supreme court has itself overruled MacMillan State v. Marcolini, 20 Fla. L. Weekly in Ferrari and Rolle." 300, 302 (Fla. 4th DCA Feb. 1, 1995). Therefore, since this honorable court has held in the past it would not review cases which apply the correct rule of law even though a case might conflict with an incorrectly decided case, this court should not accept discretionary jurisdiction to review the case at bar on the basis of direct conflict with this court's decision in MacMillan.

The Fourth District Court of Appeal did not expressly interpret the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution. Instead, it applied the United States Supreme Court's discussion of the constitutionality of a state statute in <u>Ulster County Court v. Allen</u>, 442 U.S. 140, 99 S.Ct. 2213, 60 L.Ed.2d 777 (1979); <u>Francis v. Franklin</u>, 471 U.S. 307, 105 S.Ct. 1965, 1971, 85 L.Ed.2d 344 (1985); as well as this honorable court's decisions in <u>State v. Rolle</u>, 560 So. 2d 1154 (Fla. 1990); and <u>State v. Ferrari</u>, 398 So. 2d 804 (Fla. 1981), which apply the rational connection test. <u>See State v. Marcolini</u>, 20 Fla. L. Weekly D300-302 (Fla. 4th DCA Feb. 1, 1995). The Fourth District Court of Appeal merely <u>applies</u> the dues process clause; there is no express construction involved.

it lacked held that Court has The Florida Supreme jurisdiction to review an appeal from a district court of appeal decision which did not explain or define any constitutional terms Ogle v. Pepin, 273 So. 2d 391 (Fla. 1973). or language. Court also held that to establish jurisdiction over an appeal from a decision construing a provision of the state constitution, an opinion or judgment does not construe a provision of the constitution unless it undertakes to explain, define or otherwise eliminate any existing doubts which arise from the language or terms of a constitutional provision. Ogle v. Pepin, 273 So. 2d at 392.

In the case of <u>Johnston v. State Ex Rel. Carter</u>, 213 So. 2d 435 (Fla. 1st DCA 1968), on rehearing of a petition for writ of prohibition, the appellate court discussed the "application" versus the "construction" of a constitutional provision.

The pertinent distinction was well stated in State ex rel. Sentinel Star co. v. Lambeth, 192 So. 2d 518 (Fla. App. 4th) when treating a similar problem, the court said:

'* * * To convey jurisdiction to the Supreme Court the trial court must undertake to explain, define or otherwise eliminate existing doubts arising from the language or terms of the constitutional provision. It is not sufficient to confer jurisdiction on the Supreme Court that there was inherent in the judgment appealed the construction of a controlling provision of the constitution.'

A similar distinction between 'construing' a controlling provision of the constitution and "applying' such provision was made by the Florida Supreme Court in Armstrong v. City of Tampa, 106 So. 2d 407 (Fla. 1958). There the court stated the proposition in the following manner:

' * * * In the cited cases we undertook to that the mere fact that out provision is indirectly constitutional involved in the ultimate judgment of the trial court does not in and of itself convey jurisdiction by direct appeal to this court. We agree with those courts which hold that in order to sustain the jurisdiction of this court there must be an actual construction of the constitutional provision. That is to say, by way of illustration, that the trial judge must undertake to explain, define or otherwise eliminate existing doubts arising terms of language orthe constitutional provision. merely that the trial judge sufficient examine into the facts of a particular case apply a recognized clear-cut provision of the Constitution.

Johnston v. State Ex Rel. Carter, 213 So. 2d at 440. See also Rojas v. State, 296 So. 2d 627 (Fla. 3d DCA 1974) (ruling did not involve construction of constitutional provision where the trial court merely applied provisions of Fourteenth Amendment to facts it determined existed). The Florida Supreme Court has held that "applying is not synonomous with construing; the former is not a basis for our jurisdiction, while the express construction of a constitutional provision is." Rojas v. State, 288 So. 2d 234 (Fla. 1973), cert. denied, 419 U.S. 851, 95 S.Ct. 93, 42 L.Ed.2d 82 (1974). The Court also held that in order to invoke direct appeals jurisdiction there must be a ruling which "explains, defines or overtly expresses a view which eliminates some existing doubt as to a constitutional provision in order to support a direct appeal." Rojas v. State, 288 So. 2d at 236. also Schutz v. Schutz, 581 So. 2d 1290, 1294 (Fla. See 1991)(Grimes J. concurring in part, dissenting in part); Croteau v. State, 334 So. 2d 577, 580-581 (Fla. 1976)(Hatchett J., concurring); Johnson v. State, 351 So. 2d 10, 13 (Fla. 1977)(England J., dissenting); Dykman v. State, 294 So. 2d 633, 634-635 (Fla. 1973).

Since the mere application of a constitutional principle is insufficient to invoke discretionary jurisdiction, this Court should not invoke its discretionary jurisdiction in the instant case. See Page v. State, 113 So. 3d 557 (Fla. 1959).

CONCLUSION

Based on the authorities presented herein, Respondent respectfully requests that this honorable court does not exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review this case.